
Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel to 
be held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Wednesday, 8 January 2020

TIME: 9.30 am (Member Only Briefing)
10.00 am (Meeting)

VENUE: Committee Room 3, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

10.00AM 

1  Welcome and Introductions. 

2  Apologies for absence. 

3  Declarations of Interest. 

4  To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held 
on 6 November 2019. 

(Pages 1 - 8)

5  Matters arising. 

10.10AM 

6  Mental Health All Age Commissioning Strategy. 

(Judd Skelton CCG / SCC)

(Pages 9 - 18)

10.50AM 

7  Supported Employment for vulnerable adults 

(Alison Burnett, Skills and Work SCC / Clare Mayo and Kerry 
Thornley CCG / SCC)

(Pages 19 - 46)

11.30AM 

Public Document Pack



8  Work Programme. (Pages 47 - 50)

11.35AM 

9  Any other business. 

11.45AM 

10  Date and time of next meeting - Wednesday 5 February 2020 at 
10.00am 

Future meetings of the Panel have been scheduled as follows:

- Wednesday 4 March 2020 at 10.00am
- Wednesday 1 April 2020 at 10.00am

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3011
Mike McHugh, Senior Democratic Services Officer E-Mail: mike.mchugh@salford.gov.uk



1 | P a g e

HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY PANEL

6 November 2019

Meeting commenced: 10.00 a.m.
“                  ended: 12.00 p.m.

PRESENT: Councillor Margaret Morris - in the Chair

Councillors Sammie Bellamy, Barbara Bentham, Joshua Brooks, Jim 
Dawson, Jim King and Arnold Saunders

CO-OPTED MEMBERS:
J Ahmed Healthwatch Salford
David Backhouse Healthwatch Salford

INVITEES: Councillor Gina Reynolds Lead Member for Adult Services, Health &      
Wellbeing                              

OFFICERS: Peter Brambleby Interim Director of Public Health
Karen Proctor Director of Commissioning (CCG)
Dr Tom Tasker Chair of the CCG
Melanie Walters Service Reform Manager SRFT
Elaine Hodkinson Managing Director Division of Surgery

&Tertiary Medicine SRFT
Liz Wright Senior Democratic Services Officer 

1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS
Councillor Margaret Morris welcomed those present to the meeting of the Health and 
Social Care Scrutiny Panel and thanked Councillor Sammie Bellamy for ably chairing 
the panel meetings in her absence.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
No apologies were submitted.
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no formal declarations of interest. 

4. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
The minutes of the meeting held on 2 October 2019 were approved as a correct 
record.

5. MATTERS ARISING
a.     Minutes of the meeting held on 4 September 2019

 An update was requested on fluoridation of the drinking water and dental 
varnishing, as previously discussed under item 6 Dentistry Provision of the 
minutes of the meeting held on 4 September 2019.

 Councillor Reynolds reported that a study was currently being carried out into the 
benefits of fluoridation and that Bev Wasp Public Health Strategic Manager 
(Health Protection) would report back in 6 months.

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel

6 November 2019

2 | P a g e

b.     Minutes of the meeting held on 2 October 2019
 Item 8a – Scheduling of meetings:  Clarification was sought about whether or not 

a decision had been made about moving the meetings to the evening.  It was 
confirmed that the meetings would continue to be held during the day to enable 
the officers to be able to able to attend.  The Chair requested that the decision be 
reported back to the Deputy Mayor, Councillor Paula Boshell.

RESOLVED: THAT the meetings we continue to held during the day to be able to 
accommodate the attendance of the officers from the NHS.

6. SALFORD LOCALITY PLAN REFRESH (Peter Brambleby)
Peter Brambleby presented the draft plan to date to the panel and the following 
points were highlighted.
 The full draft would be presented to the Health and Wellbeing board on 12 

November 2019 and to the GMCA (Greater Manchester Combined Authority) at 
the end of the month. The final version was expected to be presented at the 
health and Wellbeing Board in February 2020.

 The plan was drawing together all the local plans with the aim to help people live 
longer, healthier, happier lives and help to reduce inequalities.  

 The purpose of the plan was to inform, prompt questions and provide challenge.
 The plan was set out in chapters addressing the main issues and an overview 

was given of each chapter.  Some specific aspects in some of the chapters were 
highlighted as follows:
o Chapter 1:  The focus was on mental health, diabetes, cancer and learning 

difficulties as highlighted by the public consultation. The main life transitions of 
child birth and dying well were highlighted.

o  Chapter 2:  This chapter included social prescribing highlighting that the 
emphasis was not always on a medical model.

o Chapter 3: This focus on the enablers of the plan such as the finances.  It 
would include a breakdown of spending under GPs, communities, hospitals 
etc.  It was highlighted that £1 in every £6 was spent on mental health but it 
was difficult to assess the impact of the spending in this area (as in others) 
and it was recognised that this needed to be investigated further.

 Councillor Reynolds (Lead Member for Adult Services, Health and Wellbeing 
commended the approach used in the plan and commented that it was a very 
good plan. 

 The following questions were raised about the plan:

Is it correct that the city has a younger population than average for England?
This was due mainly to migration from overseas of young professionals who tended 
to be in more highly paid employment and these young people were often more 
mobile and would be more likely to move away.  There had also been an increase in 
the birth rate.  The static permanent population would form the main focus of the 
plan.  

In term of mental health, does the approach need to focus more on prevention and 
can NHS money be used to fund non-medical approaches?
The role of Public Health and the scrutiny panel was to challenge on prevention and 
help ensure that there was a multifaceted solution.  The importance of the 

Page 2



Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel

6 November 2019

3 | P a g e

contribution of the services that were not solely people focused (e.g. crime 
prevention, leisure, the local environment) was highlighted as was the importance of 
social prescribing to help build resilience.

There appears to be an age shift in the demographics but is it correct that the 
demographics vary greatly in different areas of the city?
It was highlighted that Chapter 1 in the draft Locality Plan showed how the 
demographics of the city were broken down area by area.  The councillors from each 
Ward would get Ward profiles and these would be provided at the February Health 
and Wellbeing Board meeting.  These profiles would include the education indicators 
that would show, for example, the correlation between education attainment and life 
span.

How can the return on the investment into mental health be calculated? 
There were indicators that could be used such as NICE (The National Institute for 
Health and Care Excellence) adjusted quality of life scales and HONOS (Health of 
the Nation Outcomes Scales). The better measures would be based on outcomes 
and measurable changes to individual’s health and wellbeing and other qualitative 
measures such as hope.

Do we collect qualitative data?
More qualitative data was being collected via patients’ stories.

If mental health and wellbeing is linked to educational attainment and there are 
concerns that lack of services, such as youth services, impacts on preventing mental 
health issues, what investments are being made in the area of prevention?
Many schools were working with families prior to them starting school to improve 
literacy and numeracy to get them school ready.  Inter-generational support could be 
further developed with schemes such as honorary grandparents.  The BBC was 
working with Health Visitors via the Tiny Tots initiative to support 
parents/grandparents/carers to develop language in younger children.  Further work 
is being developed to engage older non-academic students and help prepare pupils 
for life outside school.  

How do we target resources to the areas of most need?
Money from Public Health and education was being targeted onto families and peer 
groups to help raise aspirations and help break the cycle of low attainment and poor 
mental health, like the parental support work being currently done by the Health 
Improvement Service.  Further work was being carried out with Children’s Services 
into how to best target resources to reach those most in need.

Are we looking at linking care homes and schools as part of the inter-generational 
work?
It was acknowledged that this was one resources neutral way of working that could 
benefit the older and younger generations.  Care homes could be partnered with 
primary schools so that pupils visited the homes and this could include doing 
activities together such as gardening for the benefit of all involved.  Older people 
could be better utilised in schools. 

Page 3



Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel

6 November 2019

4 | P a g e

 The Chair thanked Peter Brambleby on behalf of the panel for the very 
informative update.

RESOLVED:  THAT the panel noted the report.

7. GM IMPROVING SEPCIALISED CARE PROGRAMME (Karen Proctor and Dr Tom 
Tasker)
Karen Proctor and Tom Tasker gave an overview of the report and the following 
issues were highlighted.
 The services outlined were under increasing pressure due to demand (as 

numbers increased and as people were living longer) and lack of capacity and 
funding.  

 The aim of the review was to improve standards and consistency across GM and 
the Improvement Specialist Care Board would make recommendations to the 
Joint Commissioning Board for each of the services.

 The report focused on only the eight services listed and three of those services 
(cardiology, neuro-rehabilitation and MSK & orthopaedics) were not for 
consideration at the meeting as were either at the stage of the business case 
being written or, in the case of neuro-rehabilitation, Salford Royal had already 
been identified as the single provider. 

 Of the remaining five services (benign urology; paediatric surgery; vascular 
surgery; respiratory services and breast service) it had been decided at the Joint 
Commissioning Board in September to proceed to the pre-consultation business 
case as outlined in the report as Salford Royal was heavily involved in all of the 
provision and there would be minimal impact on Salford residents.  

 Breast services was a more difficult area and so the panel were being asked 
specifically for their views on the future provision for this service.

 Currently 75% of people accessed the services at Wythenshawe Hospital, around 
20% at the Royal Bolton Hospital and the rest at North Manchester General.

 The options were based on a three site model and the four options would all go to 
the pre-consultation business case and the views of the panel were being sought 
to help inform this.

 The four options laid out in the report were reviewed in detail.
 Transport and equality of access were highlighted by the panel as important 

considerations and the following questions were raised.
 The difference between the CCG areas and the council wards was explained so 

councillors could see where their particular wards were represented in the data.

There are issues recruiting qualified staff.  How will the re-organisation impact on 
recruitment and investment in facilities?
It was confirmed that where services had been lost it was often down to lack of 
capacity in the clinical teams.  Having three centres would help with the efficient use 
of resources and should help with recruitment, for example breast radiologists did 
prefer to work on a centralised site.  Wythenshawe Hospital was attractive as a 
specialist site and concentrating services at specialist sites would be more attractive 
in terms of recruiting staff.  Capital investment would be needed on all the estates 
and the costs for each site were not significantly different.

Page 4



Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel

6 November 2019

5 | P a g e

Has the Government allocated new funding for North Manchester under its recent 
announcement and how would this impact on the options?
The funding would be to develop the hospital as a community hospital.  This
particular Government development could take up to 10 years to come to fruition at 
North Manchester but there could not be a delay to address breast services as this 
had to be done quickly.

Could bursaries/scholarships be offered for specialisms to help with recruitment?
Work was already going on generally in the NHS to encourage trainee doctors to 
specialise in the unpopular areas with placements as part of their training.  Financial 
incentives have been shown not to work in the longer term.  GM was currently also 
looking at guaranteeing jobs for nurse graduates in the area to attract them to stay.
 
Are there alternative transport methods available as public transport is often not 
available or suitable, particularly if you are immobile and rely on public transport?
How information about Patient Transport Services was made available to patients 
was being reviewed.  This information included the national scheme to claim back 
travel costs and also voluntary travel services but it was clear that these were not 
widely known about and only people on certain benefits were entitled to claim travel 
money back.

 There was a discussion about how accessible the hospital were and how easy it 
was to travel to them.  The panel view was that the public transport services were 
not connected and were inadequate for travelling across the city in many areas 
and the general public were not aware of being able to claim travel money back 
or what voluntary services were available.

 There was a concern that a significantly high proportion of people in Salford did 
not own a car and also those on benefits would not be able to afford public 
transport.

 The panel’s view was that they agreed there was a clinical need to rationalise the 
services but that transport was a significant issue in Salford that needed to be 
addressed.

 The panel requested information on the number of Do not attends for operations 
and appointments for these services.  Karen Proctor agreed to provide this 
information.

 The panel agreed that Option 4 (Wythenshawe, Bolton, and Tameside) was the 
preferred option for the breast services.  The quality of the North Manchester 
General estate, it CQC rating, its potential development as a community hospital 
and the transport issues, made it less favourable.

RESOLVED: THAT the panel:
1. Requested the data on Do not attends from Karen Proctor;
2. Agreed their preference was for Option 4 for the breast services.

8. SRFT ELECTIVE ORTHAPAEDIC BREIFING (Karen Proctor, Melanie Walters, 
Elaine Hodkinson)
Melanie Walters, Elaine Hodkinson gave an overview of the report and the following 
issues were highlighted.
 In 2014 the decision was taken some non-emergency orthopaedic surgery to 

Page 5



Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel

6 November 2019

6 | P a g e

Trafford General from Salford Royal (roughly half).  This was to reduce 
cancellations and free capacity for Salford Royal as a major trauma site.  Trafford 
General had given 6 months’ notice that they would be stopping providing this 
service to Salford Royal.

 The options were to look at Bury (Fairfield Hospital), Rochdale, Oldham and the 
private provider Oaklands (in Salford).

 All the Pennine area currently went to Fairfield Hospital and Rochdale and the 
outcomes had improved.

 The capacity at Salford Royal and Oaklands Hospital was being reviewed.
 The day cares for hand and upper limb surgery was currently done at Salford 

Royal and Oakland’s and the lower limb surgery was at Fairfield Hospital.
 Patient engagement work was currently being started and this would also include 

the transport options.
 Concern was expressed by panel members that because the patients were 

orthopaedic patients it may not be possible for them to travel by public transport 
to Fairfield Hospital.

Why was there only 6 months’ notice for the cessation of the contract with Trafford 
General?
The reasons the hospital gave were because of a programme of refurbishment works 
that needed to be carried out.  An extension to the cancellation period had been 
requested and an extension granted until June 2020.

If the surgery is at multiple sites will the aftercare be done locally?
It was confirmed that only the surgery not the after acre would be affected.  For 
example the outpatients at Salford Royal and Oaklands Hospital would remain and 
mainly be with the same consultants. 

Has Oaklands Hospital got the spare capacity and is it at a greater cost as a private 
hospital?
A high volume of patients in Salford already chose the Oakland Hospital and the cost 
was the same for the providers usually but the actual negotiations for the new 
arrangements were not yet completed and so not yet known.

How do we ensure the quality of the surgeons at Oaklands Hospital?  
It was confirmed that contractual arrangements were the same with private services.  
The CQC rating had previously been inadequate but was now good and standards 
were being monitored closely.  The concerns that led to the previous rating were 
around leadership and the leadership had been changed. It was confirmed that 
Salford Royal consultants would perform the surgery at Oaklands Hospital and 
Salford Royal had recently shared good practice in governance with them to also 
help them improve.

 The panel requested the following information and Dr Tasker confirmed he would 
provide It:

o The infection rates at Oaklands Hospital;
o When the leadership at Oaklands Hospital changed;
o The transport that would be available for patients.

Page 6



Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel

6 November 2019

7 | P a g e

RESOLVED:  THAT the panel requested the information as listed above.

9. WORK PROGRAMME
 The Chair commented that’s he was concerned that Out of Area Placements for 

Young Adults (18-25 years) with Autism and ADHD was no longer on the Work 
Programme and the panel agreed that it should be added to the agenda for the 
January 2020 meeting alongside the two planned agenda items.

 The decision to cancel the next meeting on 4th December due it the General 
Election would be confirmed at the Overview and Scrutiny Panel later in the 
afternoon.

 The panel agreed that the agenda items planned for the December 2019 should 
be moved to the March 2020 meeting.

RESOLVED: THAT 
1. Meeting on the 4th December should be cancelled;
2. The agenda items from the December meeting should be added to the 

agenda for the March 2020 meeting;
3. Out of Area Placements for Young Adults (18-25 years) with Autism and 

ADHD should be added to the agenda for the January 2020 meeting;
4. The work programme should be updated to include all these changes.

10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS
There were no items of any other business.

11. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

RESOLVED: THAT the next meeting of this Committee be held on Wednesday 8 
January 2020 at 10.00 a.m.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 9

ITEM NO.

___________________________________________________________________

REPORT OF:

Integrated Commissioning 

TO:

HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY PANEL on 8th JANUARY 2020
__________________________________________________________________________

TITLE: Mental Health Update

RECOMMENDATIONS:

(1) That Health and Social Care Scrutiny notes and comments on the report.

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 Part A of the paper provides an update against the key work streams for Adult Mental Health. 

1.2 Part B of the report provides an update on the Living Well Salford programme as part of the 
Living Well UK model. 

  BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  n/a

KEY DECISION: n/a

DETAILS:

2. PART A: MENTAL HEALTH UPDATE 

The 5 Year Forward View for Mental Health (5YFV) and the NHS Long Term Plan sets out a range 
of targets for mental health. 

This paper provides an update on the current adult mental health performance against these targets 
locally, along with an update on the additional mental health work streams, aligning with ongoing 
work across Greater Manchester and Salford’s Mental Health Strategy. 

2.1 Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) 

“The Mental Health Five Year Forward View Implementation Plan set out the ambition to increase 
access to integrated evidence-based psychological therapies to at least 600,000 additional adults 
with anxiety and depression each year by 2020/21. The primary purpose of this indicator is to 
measure improvement in access rates to psychological therapy services via the national Improving 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



Page 2 of 9

Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) programme for people with depression and/or anxiety 
disorders”.

As evidenced in the table above (local data), Salford continues to achieve and exceed the access 
target. The recovery target is also achieved for the second consecutive month. Whilst the two 
waiting time measures (referral to treatment targets – RTT) are below target, improvement from 
August to September is evident. It is expected that the national targets will be achieved in published 
data from the end of November onwards.  

The Step 3 phase 2 IAPT business case was approved at the end of October. This sees additional 
investment of £512,872 recurrently to meet the 25% access rate and £285,960 non recurrent 
funding to support continued reduction of the waiting list and implementation of additional pathway 
work to support the flow of referrals.  

In addition, Catherine Webster was commissioned by the CCG to undertake an external review of 
the capacity required in the IAPT system. This review utilised historic and current data to 
understand the overall picture and flow of referrals coming into the system. The review provided 
assurance that the system is stable and that the number of referrals being stepped up through the 
system was as anticipated in the original SPA approach. This suggests that we have the correct 
commissioned capacity in the system to meet demand. 

A pathway meeting between IAPT service leads is in place to explore additional approaches to 
manage demand (e.g. group work, shared understanding of data and referral flow). 

The Step 2 IAPT service provided by Six Degrees Social Enterprise is currently experiencing 
challenges in workforce. This is a national problem and has been escalated via GM. Current waiting 
times in the service are around 10 weeks. The service is looking to utilise agency for the first time in 
its existence and has confirmed that they will be taking on additional trainees and assistant 
practitioners in the new year. 

2.1.1 IAPT Development Plans (Long Term Conditions) 

As part of our local efforts to increase the number of people accessing psychological therapies for 
anxiety/depression (and to achieve 25% access target by 2021) we are focusing on people who 
have co-existing long-term physical health conditions (LTCs) and also those experiencing perinatal 
mental health issues. 

The Six Degrees CQUIN continues to focus on LTC and build upon the pathway development 
undertaken in 2018/19, particularly with Health Psychology. Further work is being undertaken in 
relation to increasing the use of etherapy for those with LTC. 

Page 10



Page 3 of 9

2.2 Perinatal Mental Health

The impact of mental health problems experienced by women in pregnancy and during the first year 
following the birth of their child can be challenging for both, mother and baby, as well as their 
families. The 5YFV sets out an objective that by 2020/21, NHS England should support at least 
30,000 more women each year to access evidence-based specialist mental health care during the 
perinatal period. This needs to include access to psychological therapies and the right range of 
specialist community or inpatient care so that comprehensive, high-quality services are in place 
across England.

The first work stream focuses on the specialist community psychiatric input that is required to meet 
the needs of the most acutely unwell patients.  This work stream is being taken forward at a GM 
level with GMMH being commissioned to provide this service across GM since they are also the 
provider of the existing GM Mother and Baby unit. The GM service is being developed in clusters, 
with Salford being included in the second cluster. This is now live and the service is linking with GPs 
and local services to ensure appropriate referrals. 

The second work stream focuses on the provision of psychological therapies for people with 
perinatal mental health difficulties. Perinatal champions are in place in all IAPT services and have 
accessed the GM perinatal training. Health Visitors are able to refer directly into the IAPT SPA and 
there is work underway to support direct referrals from midwifery. The perinatal self assessment 
checklist is also being undertaken on a quarterly basis to ensure developments are identified. 

The third work stream focuses on addressing attachment and bonding issues via early intervention 
approaches. Work is underway to explore local demographics along with a needs assessment 
within Salford to underpin a local model or options appraisal for development of this service. This 
work is sitting with children’s commissioning as the lead. 

2.3 Early Intervention in Psychosis (EIP)

NHS England states “The access and waiting time standard requires that more than 50% of people 
experiencing first episode psychosis will be treated with a NICE recommended package of care 
within two weeks of referral”. 

In order to achieve the standard, both the maximum waiting time from referral to treatment and 
access to NICE recommended care must be met. Success is measured as ‘more than 50% of 
people experiencing a first episode of psychosis are treated with a NICE recommended care 
package within two weeks of referral’. NHS England has committed to ensuring that, by 2020/21, 
the standard will be extended to reach at least 60% of people experiencing first episode psychosis. 

Salford’s performance for September 2019 is 64% which meets the target of 53%. As previously 
outlined, a business case (total £269,909) was approved to invest £148,360 recurrently in the 
delivery of NICE concordant interventions and an additional non recurrent investment of £121,549 to 
support a non-recurrent test of change relating to the assessment function in the service. Staffing 
are now in place and the service is working alongside the commissioners to align incentive monies, 
via the New Currency work, to further develop the service, focusing on outcomes. 

2.4 Adult Mental Health Crisis Services

The 5YFV outlines that: ‘at least 50% of acute hospitals should meet the core 24 service standard 
for mental health liaison as a minimum. People presenting with a mental health need in A&E 
departments and on physical health wards will have access to swift an compassionate assessment 
of their mental health needs and high quality NICE recommended care, 24 hours per day, 7 days 
per week. There will be a reduction in inappropriate inpatient admissions, shorter length of stay, 

Page 11



Page 4 of 9

reduction in delayed transfers of care and reduced readmissions’

Salford CCG has invested considerably in development of its local Mental Health Liaison Service - 
£1.2m in 2013. Salford has secured some of the GM transformation funds (circa £630K in wave 1) 
to develop this further to be fully CORE24 compliant and meet all targets. 

69.9% of referrals were seen within one hour in August 2019 against a target of 75%. Performance 
for referrals from A&E seen within two hours was 83.7% for August 2019 against a target of 95%. 
The challenges in performance are linked to the current staffing vacancies within the service. 
Recruitment of bank staff and a GM recruitment drive is underway to address this.    

The agreed 24/7 crisis beds in Hollybank are being implemented as an 18 month test of change. 

2.5 Mental Health Out of Area Placements (OAPs)

The 5YFV states that by 2020/21, out of area placements will essentially be eliminated for acute 
mental health care for adults. 

Notification of Maryfield Court (previously used to support reduction of Out of Area Placements) 
being placed into special measures by CQC was recently received. The CCG has assurance from 
GMMH that no Salford people have been placed at Maryfield since July 2019. 

Salford’s August 2019 report showed 0 reportable out of area placements, using a total of 0 bed 
nights (in comparison to 28 bed nights in the same month for 2018/19) and 3 local non reportable 
out of area placements, using 112 bed nights (compared to 85 bed nights for the same month in 
2018/19).  

Current out of area placements for week commencing 4th November are 3 reportable and 3 non 
reportable. 

2.6 Delayed Transfers of Care (DTOC)

The GM working group has been supporting a shared understanding of DTOC and how this should 
be reported across all mental health trusts in GM. Following this, a shared definition has been 
implemented and this has led to an increased reported of DTOCs in GMMH since January 2019, 
however this has supported a more accurate picture of DTOCs in the system. 

DTOC processes are now starting to identify people who are potentially at risk of becoming a 
DTOC. This is allowing people to be identified much sooner and for steps to be put in place to 
support discharge as soon as the person is ready. The review of DTOCs since January 2019 is 
underway and will inform future market shaping. 

2.7 Suicide Prevention Strategy

Reduction of deaths by suicide by a target of 10% was set as a national target in the 5YFV. A 
Greater Manchester Suicide Prevention Executive is in place which is overseeing the 
implementation of the GM Suicide Prevention Strategy and action plan.  Salford is well connected 
into this with the Assistant Director for Integrated Commissioning being the lead GM MH 
Commissioner in this area. 

Page 12



Page 5 of 9

Suicide Prevention Awareness Day (10th September) and World Mental Health Day (10th October) 
saw a number of events and activities take place to raise awareness across Salford and GM. Local 
activities linked into the GM ‘Shining A Light on Suicide’ campaign. Additional work relating to 
suicide prevention is being overseen by the Suicide Prevention Partnership. This includes: 

 Lived Experience project – Listening to people’s experiences of suicide attempts or 
bereavement from suicide to inform how services and support may be improved 

 Audit / Coroner’s work – Exploring the information that can be received from the coroner to 
support a better understanding of the demographics to target re suicide prevention 

 GP Risk Factors Project – testing out how people presenting at GPs with a number of risk 
factors might be better identified and supported as potential higher risk groups. 

2.8 Employment Support

The Five Year Forward View for Mental Health (5YFV) identifies the disparity between those people 
with mental health issues and the general population in relation to achieving employment.  43 % of 
all people with mental health problems (predominantly common mental health problems) are in 
employment compared to 74% of the general population and 65% of people with other health 
conditions. The employment rate for people in secondary care mental health services is even lower 
at 6.7% nationally. 

The Start Forward service has received agreement to extend for a one year period to align with 
Living Well. The service will be reviewed to ensure that it is offering the most effective support to 
people in the Living Well programme.  

Commissioners are also linked into the GM work relating to employment support and this is focused 
on ensuring that local pathways are considered in the forthcoming GM service to facilitate referrals. 
A tender for the GM service is underway. 

2.9 VCSE Mental Health Grants Funding 

Transformation Funding from Greater Manchester has been allocated to the VCSE sector to support 
a grants programme, administered by Salford CVS. This is a fund of £300k per annum over the next 
three years (although this will be reviewed as programmes of work in the VCSE sector are agreed). 
Through triangulation of the engagement work with staff, service users and carers, VCSE sector 
colleagues and public health data, we developed a list of key areas for the bidding processes to 
focus on.   

Two large bids were awarded in line with the Living Well programme. These are as follows: 

 Peer Support – Awarded to Mind and the Mental Health Forum (£50k per year for two years)
 Coaching – Awarded to Start (£50k per year for two years)

Successful partners have been invited to join the Living Well Design Group to ensure that the 
services are co-produced. The VCSE sector have been advised that there may not be another 
round of funding in 2019/20, instead the successful organisations may be allocated additional 
funding to upscale their programmes of work. 

Page 13



Page 6 of 9

Three smaller programmes were also funded (each c£10k per year for two years). These focus on 
supporting access to mental health services for specific community groups or providing culturally 
appropriate interventions. 

A further £300k has been identified for Adult mental health and will be located with CVS as part of 
the VCSE mental health grants. 

2.10 Adult Community Eating Disorders 

A review of the adult ED service has been undertaken. This has identified a number of challenges 
including: 

 Changes to NICE Guidance 
 Impact of CYP referral to treatment timescales 
 Medical input, particularly to supporting those people with a severe and enduring ED
 Family Therapy availability 
 Lack of commissioned capacity. 

These challenges have resulted in a service with significant waits in parts of the pathway and a lack 
of parity between CYP and adult eating disorder services. The service is held in high regard with 
positive feedback from people accessing support. 

The review paper will be presented at Service and Finance Group on the 05.11.19 with a view to 
seeking approval to develop a business case.

3. PART B: LIVING WELL SALFORD PROGRAMME UPDATE 

Salford is one of 4 national sites that has been selected to work with the Innovation Unit on a three 
year programme to scale up learning from the model of mental health care in Lambeth, with a focus 
on those people who are too complex to manage in primary care but who do not meet secondary 
care criteria.   The Living Well Programme is designed to help us think differently about mental 
health support. It will help Salford to focus on people’s skills, aspirations and experiences to build a 
different way of offering support and is very much built on the principles of co–design and co-
production with people with lived experience. Work began in January 2019.

Over the past few months the Salford Living Well Design Team (which comprises colleagues from 
GMMH, SRFT, VCSE Sector, Commissioners and  people with lived experience) and the Living 
Well Collaborative (a larger group which as well as including Design Team members also includes 
partners such as Housing, substance misuse, police and others)   have been progressing the 
prototyping of the new model. 

There are some key aspects to the Salford model namely:

 The Listening Lounge:  Safe spaces to share stories and build relationships
 The Living Well Team:  A multi-disciplinary team that connects peoples to integrated support
 My Story My Plan:  Contains the things that are most relevant to the individual.. Created and 

owned by the individuals and facilitated by the Living Well Team
 Network of Support:  Comprising organisations and services that provide social, practical, 

learning and clinical support that people can access depending on their needs and goals 

Page 14



Page 7 of 9

The emerging model is presented below  

To make sure that things are ready for the prototyping phase, the Design Team has been exploring 
some key issues, such as: 

The Living Well Team – This will be a core of multi-disciplinary team members, including mental 
health practitioners, peer supporters, voluntary sector colleagues, social workers and occupational 
therapists. They will be supported by a team manager and recruitment is underway for this role with 
GMMH. The Team Manager post is being funded via Lottery monies allocated to Salford as part of 
the programme.  

Governance – Deciding how the partners will work together, including the approach to clinical 
oversight, risk management and staff support. An alliance approach is being explored – this will 
mean that whilst there may be one lead organisation for policies and procedures, the way that the 
service operates is more of a partnership approach. 

IT Systems and Information Governance – Making sure that the information people share with 
the Living Well service is done so legally and with consent. The IT that we use will need to work 
together with other systems used in Salford. 

Location - Whilst the MDT team will mostly be working in the community, they will need space to do 
office work and have team discussions. The Design Team is exploring local places and spaces. 

Page 15



Page 8 of 9

The Person’s Journey – the Collaborative has been working on developing the journey through the 
living well model. This will also continue to be developed through the use of case examples and 
from the stories of people with lived experience. The Design team is working to plan how to put the 
steps of the journey into place. 

Training, Learning and Development – As the Living Well  team will start small and then grow the 
numbers of people they are supporting, there should be lots of time for learning and growing as a 
service. Supervision, peer support and learning and shadowing opportunities are being thought 
through to ensure that staff and volunteers are well supported in their roles. 

Developing an Evaluation Framework – Cordisbright and Innovation Unit have been supporting 
conversations to understand what we will evaluate and how we will do this. We will need to explore 
ways of measuring the difference that this service will make to local people and the wider system. 

VCSE Mental Health Grants Salford’s share of the Greater Manchester Mental Health 
Transformation money is used to support a grants process, administered by Salford CVS. This year 
the following awards were aligned to the Living Well model and will be key components of the new 
Living Well MDT: 

 Peer Support (£50k per year for two years) to MIND In Salford to work with the Salford 
Mental Health Forum to develop them as an organisation and to offer a peer support 
approach, supporting volunteers to work within the Living Well MDT. 

 Coaching / Recovery Workers (£50k per year for two years) to Start In Salford to provide 
VCSE staff that could work alongside the person accessing the service to support their 
strengths, offer skill building opportunities and connect to the wider VCSE sector. 

Prototyping will began in Broughton in December 2019 with a small number of people ahead of roll 
out across Broughton in April 2020 for 12 months. 

4. RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That Health and Social Care Scrutiny notes and comments on the report.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

N/A 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:-

N/A
__________________________________________________________________________

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  N/A
__________________________________________________________________________

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: N/A
__________________________________________________________________________

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: N/A
__________________________________________________________________________

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: N/A

Page 16



Page 9 of 9

___________________________________________________________________

HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS: N/A

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  N/A
___________________________________________________________________

CONTACT OFFICER: Clare Mayo TEL. NO. 0161 212 4236
__________________________________________________________________________

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):  All wards
__________________________________________________________________________

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Part  1 ITEM NO.

___________________________________________________________________

REPORT OF:

Integrated Commissioning 

TO:

HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY PANEL on 8th JANUARY 2020
___________________________________________________________________

TITLE:  
SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT FOR MENTAL HEALTH AND LEARNING 

DISABILITY

RECOMMENDATION: 

The panel is asked to consider the contents of the report and potential impact on 
Salford residents.
___________________________________________________________________

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The paper provides an overview of the background to, current performance of and 
future plans to address employment for people accessing secondary care mental 
health services and people with Learning Disabilities. 

An overview of the current performance shows: 

 Salford is currently 4th in GM against ASCOF measure 1F  and is in line with 
North West performance. However, the locally set target of 10% is not 
currently being achieved at the mid year point. 

 Salford is currently Salford is below average for GM but ahead of  the North 
West average against ASCOF measure 1E 

There are a number of planned approaches to support people with secondary care 
mental health needs and Learning Disabilities into employment, including: 

 GM commissioning
 Revision of mental health employment support to align with the Living Well 

model 
 Local commissioning of LD provision 

___________________________________________________________________

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



Sept 2019.odt

___________________________________________________________________

KEY DECISION: 

No – for Briefing. 
___________________________________________________________________

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:

Supported employment 
Personalisation 
Integrated care 
Mental Health Strategy
___________________________________________________________________

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:N/A
___________________________________________________________________

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: N/A
___________________________________________________________________

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A
___________________________________________________________________

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A
___________________________________________________________________

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A
___________________________________________________________________

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A
_________________________________________________________________

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A
_________________________________________________________________

CONTACT OFFICER: Clare Mayo, Alison Burnett, Kerry Thornley 
__________________________________________________________________

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All
___________________________________________________________________

1. Background

Page 20



1.1 The Five Year Forward View for Mental Health (5YFV) identified the disparity 
between people with mental health issues and the general population in relation to 
achieving employment1. Nationally, 43% of all people with mental health problems 
(predominantly common mental health problems) are in employment compared to 
74% of the general population and 65% of people with other health conditions. The 
employment rate for people in secondary care mental health services is even lower 
at 6.7% nationally2. 

This led to a national objective to support 29,000 more people living with mental 
health problems to find or stay in work through increasing access to psychological 
therapies for common mental health problems and expanding access to Individual 
Placement and Support (IPS), which is a specific model of supporting people in to 
work. Predominantly, these types of work streams have focussed on providing 
support to people with common mental health problems, rather than people who 
are further away from employment (e.g. people with severe and enduring mental 
health problems and more complex support needs). 

Salford’s All Age Mental Health Commissioning Strategy identifies employment, 
particularly for people with Severe and Enduring (SMI) mental health needs as a 
key priority. Similarly, employment for this cohort is also one of Salford’s 10 key 
priority areas for 2019/2020.  

1.2   People with learning disabilities are far less likely to be in employment than 
the rest of the population.  NHS Digital (2018) published data that confirmed only 
6% of people with a learning disability, known to the local authority were in paid 
work.  This figure has been static for over a decade, and is in comparison to 48% of 
people with a disability and 75% of the general population.

There are many barriers faced by people with a learning disability in accessing and 
maintaining employment, which include: lack of good quality support, absence of 
support to build confidence, skills and aspiration for the individual, attitudes and 
lack of knowledge of employers’.

The low rates of employment are reflective of a lack of support currently available in 
order to make progress with this. 

The Greater Manchester Learning Disability Strategy identifies employment as one 
of its priorities, and this is also to be reflected in the local strategy currently being 
developed for Salford.

2. Current Performance and Monitoring

1 1 NHSE (2016) The Five Year Forward View for Mental Health (pg 6) Available online: https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2016/02/Mental-Health-Taskforce-FYFV-final.pdf
2 https://digital.nhs.uk/catalogue/PUB30122

Page 21

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/Mental-Health-Taskforce-FYFV-final.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/Mental-Health-Taskforce-FYFV-final.pdf


The Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework (ASCOF) provides a national 
measure of adult social care targets. 

2.1 Outcome 1F refers to the proportion of adults in contact with secondary mental 
health services that are in employment. 

  
Locality ASCOF 1F: Proportion of adults in 

contact with secondary mental health 
services in paid employment. 

GM Average 6%
Bolton 8%
Bury 3%
Manchester 6%
Oldham 3%
Rochdale 3%
Salford 7%
Stockport 6%
Tameside 5%
Trafford 11%
Wigan 9%
England Average (18/19 ASCOF 
Spreadsheet)

8%

NW Average (18/19 ASCOF 
Spreadsheet)

7%

Taken from GM Monthly ASCOF data return December 2019

Salford’s mental health performance against a target of 10% in 2019 was reported 
at 7.3-7.5% for the first three quarters of the year, rising to 9.3% towards the end 
of the year. Benchmarking across GM suggests that Salford is the 4th highest 
performing locality and is in line with the North West average.

2.2 Outcome 1E refers to the proportion of adults with a learning disability in paid 
employment. 

  
Locality ASCOF Performance 1E: refers to the 

proportion of adults with a learning 
disability in paid employment 

GM Avg / North West 5.7% / 4.3%
Trafford 13.1%
Bolton 2.3%
Wigan 3.1%
Salford 4.7%
Tameside and Glossop 4.2% (Tameside)
Stockport 10.6%
Manchester 1.9%
Bury 4.9%

Page 22



Haywood, Middleton and Rochdale 6.5% (Rochdale)
National Average  6%

     Taken from NHS Digital https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-
information/publications/statistical/adult-social-care-outcomes-framework-
ascof/current/enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-care-and-support-needs/1e-
proportion-of-adults-with-a-learning-disability-in-paid-employment

Salford’s learning disability performance against a target of 5% in 2019 was 
reported at 4.7%. This percentage has varied between 4.2-4.7% but has been 
consistently around this level.  Presently no service is commissioned and so no 
improvement was expected until this is in place. Benchmarking across GM 
suggest that Salford is below average for GM but ahead of the North West 
average. 

3. Addressing the Challenge 

There are a range of approaches aiming to increase the number of people with 
Learning Disabilities and Mental Health Problems (specifically SMI) in employment. 

3.1 Regional Approaches 

3.1.1 GM Working Well Specialist Employment Service (GMSES)

Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) and GM Health and Social Care 
Partnership (GM HSCP) have been developing the commission of a GM Specialist 
Employment service (GMSES). This service aims to ‘top up’ existing limited 
specialist employment provision and comprise supported employment for people 
with learning disabilities and/or Autism and IPS for people with severe and enduring 
mental illness. 

A number of workshops have taken place at GM level to inform the service, of 
which Salford Commissioners have been involved.

GMSES has been out to the market to tender, with the tender consisting of two 
separate contracted lots:

Lot 1 – Salford, Bolton, Manchester, Trafford & Wigan
Lot 2 – Stockport, Oldham, Tameside, Bury & Rochdale 

The contract is due to commence in January 2020 – but officially contract delivery 
will start on 1st April 2020. This is a 3 year contract and will run until 31st March 
2023.

The Service is funded by Mental Health Transformation Funding, European Social 
Funding and Local Authority contribution and the total contract value is c£4 Million 
for both lots. 

Salford have contributed £30k towards the funding for this service.  The service will 
work with the following numbers of people in Salford:

Page 23

https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/adult-social-care-outcomes-framework-ascof/current/enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-care-and-support-needs/1e-proportion-of-adults-with-a-learning-disability-in-paid-employment
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/adult-social-care-outcomes-framework-ascof/current/enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-care-and-support-needs/1e-proportion-of-adults-with-a-learning-disability-in-paid-employment
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/adult-social-care-outcomes-framework-ascof/current/enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-care-and-support-needs/1e-proportion-of-adults-with-a-learning-disability-in-paid-employment
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/adult-social-care-outcomes-framework-ascof/current/enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-care-and-support-needs/1e-proportion-of-adults-with-a-learning-disability-in-paid-employment


 Supported Employment for Learning Disability &/or Autism is to work with 39 
people across the 3 years with 13 people gaining paid employment 

 Individual Placement & Support is to work with 88 people across the 3 years 
with 22 people gaining paid employment.

This will contribute to our targets of increasing employment for these groups.

Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) used the Working Age 
Population Figures for each of the 10 Boroughs to come up with the numbers of 
people to be supported, so for example Manchester has the highest population in 
GM, so will have to work with higher percentage of individuals across the contract.

This new service is not to replace existing provision for those areas with existing 
commissioned or in-house services, rather being designed to complement existing 
provision. Plans are already underway to align the GM service with the local IPS 
provision for mental health.  

3.2 Local Approaches (General Employment Support) 

3.2.1 Skills and Work Support Services: Salford Health Works supports adults 
aged 18 - 65 years within families with complex needs who are or have been 
supported by the council through our Early Help services. The service offers:

 the provision of support for workless or low paid adults to move into work, 
sustain work when at risk or progress to better paid work. 

 the provision of financial inclusion advice where it will impact on 
employability and mental well-being 

3.2.2 Salford Connexions helps young people aged 16 – 18 to move into new 
education, training and employment opportunities. They also support young 
people up to 25 if they have special educational needs (SEND). Particular focus is 
paid to vulnerable groups including looked after children, young offenders, 
teenage parents and those with mental health difficulties. The service includes:

 Careers information, advice and guidance
 CV writing, job searches, applications and interview support
 Local opportunities including apprenticeships, traineeships and training 

courses
 Referrals to partner agencies for specialist support

3.2.3 Supported Internships are structured study programmes specifically 
designed for young people aged 16-24 with Education, Health and Care plans. 
They are intended to enable young people with learning difficulties and/or 
disabilities to develop the necessary workplace skills and experience to achieve 
paid sustainable employment. They normally last for a full academic year, and 
include work placements of at least six months. Interns develop the practical skills 
and confidence needed to travel independently to and from placements, alongside 
working towards achieving accredited qualifications. A dedicated job brokerage 
support is provided to enable the young person to move into paid employment at 
the end of the programme, wherever possible.

Page 24



Salford residents with an education, health and care plan, who have not yet 
achieved a Level 2 qualification, are eligible to apply for a supported internship.

3.2.4 Salford’s Information Advice and Guidance (IAG) Network links 120+ 
organisations in Salford whom have a skills and work offer for residents and 
provides regularly updates for members on work, training and funding 
opportunities. There is an offer of induction training for all new frontline staff: a 
local IAG & Well-being directory with contact details of over 120 organisations 
offering skills, work and well-being support and over 160 organisations offering 
general support that can help new staff to become familiar with the key personal 
and support systems in Salford.

An optional monthly practitioner forum brings together a broader range of 
employment, skills and well-being support services, including community and 
voluntary sector providers.  This is an important way for the Working Well 
specialist employment programme provider to share learning and integrate with 
the local delivery system.

3.2.5 Employer Engagement.  A strong and positive relationship with employers is 
seen as a key element in connecting residents to opportunities; including jobs, 
training, apprenticeships and work experience. This is identified as key in 
delivering the aims of the Skills and Work Strategy 
https://www.partnersinsalford.org/salford-skills-and-work-board/salford-
employment-and-skills-strategy/ and the Cities NEET Reduction Strategy.  In 
addition, such an approach also has the potential to help attract new investment to 
the city, support business growth and development and maximise the 
opportunities arising from wider regeneration activity. 

The City Council is therefore keen to continue to deliver and promote a more 
joined up ‘offer’ and approach to employer brokerage activity both within the City 
Council and with partner organisations, working with Employers who are 
committed to the Employment Standards which are detailed in the Salford City 
Mayor’s Employment Standards Charter . https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-
council/city-mayor/city-mayors-employment-charter/ This will help to ensure that 
employment and skills opportunities for Salford residents (aged 16 +) are 
maximised, of quality and duplication for employers in the City is minimised.

3.2.6 Social Prescribing is a city wide primary care lead social prescribing model 
currently in development within the city which has deployed care navigators and 
community connectors to work within GP practices. 

3.3 Local Approaches (Mental Health Specific) 

3.3.1 IPS 

Salford currently delivers its IPS approach via two key services. The Early 
Intervention in Psychosis (EIP) Team comprises an employment specialist and an 
employment retention worker who support people with a first episode psychosis 
back into work. In 2018, oversight of the IPS model was extended to ensure a 

Page 25

https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/city-mayor/city-mayors-employment-charter/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/city-mayor/city-mayors-employment-charter/


consistent approach across the wider Salford pathway. There were 59 people 
supported under the local IPS approach in 2018/19 to date, with 38 progressing 
on to employment. The team has a strong level of fidelity to the national IPS 
guidance and is regularly reviewed as part of the EIP annual audit. 

Elements of the IPS model are also provided via the Community Engagement 
Recovery Team (CERT), which comprises workers who are co-located within 
CMHTs to support people with employment, vocational, educational and 
volunteering opportunities. These workers attend regular MDTs and support 
people with a range of work and vocational opportunities. 

3.3.2 Living Well Employment Specialist Support

As part of the Salford Together work, the creation of neighbourhood teams saw 
local teams across Salford bringing services closer to the community. These 
teams included practitioners from a range of disciplines, including mental health. 
This means that people with mental health problems will have better joined up 
care, building on the existing links in the community – including employment 
support via places such as Job Centre Plus. Salford’s approach to IPS and wider 
employment support is viewed as a pathway approach, with a co-ordinated offer 
of support tailored to meet individual needs. It was identified that there was a gap 
in this pathway relating to individuals who do not require an IPS approach or the 
input of the CERT team, but are also not yet ready for more universal work 
pathways. This led to the commissioning of the Start Forward programme. The 
programme operated on a group basis, providing a range of employment based 
skills. 

The emerging Living Well model (please see attached newsletter below) has since 
provided an opportunity to re-think our employment offer for people with mental 
health problems. The Start Forward programme has been decommissioned and a 
revised offer has been developed as an integral part of the Living Well multi-
disciplinary team. This offer has been co-produced with lived experience 
colleagues and will sit alongside other practitioners (including peer workers, 
mental health professionals and recovery workers) to ensure that employment 
support is part of a holistic package of support to people experiencing mental 
health problems. The Living Well programme is in a prototyping phase, looking to 
work with up to 12 people over the next few months. This will then be scaled up to 
operate over one area in Salford for a one year period. A full evaluation of the 
model will then inform roll out across the wider Salford locality. 

Living Well UK 
Newsletter - December - FINAL.pdf

3.3.3 Wider VCSE Provision 

In addition, to the approaches described above, a number of specific services are 
commissioned to support people with mental health problems which also include 
outcomes relating to employment. These include: 

Page 26



 Start – Arts based mental health support. Outcomes for this service include 
supporting people to develop their goals and interests, often supporting 
attendees to access arts based training / qualifications and progressing into 
developing own businesses and / or teaching qualifications. 

 Horticulture Support – Offering skills and training in horticulture provision. 

3.4 Local Approaches (Learning Disability Specific) 

3.4.1 Skills and Work Commissioning Team Post
The Skills and Work team are currently recruiting a dedicated officer to work with 
residents, employers and city partners to increase the number of Salford residents 
with LD and other significant disabilities who are in paid work. Their focus will be 
to increase the number of skills and employment opportunities for priority 
residents. They will encourage adults and young people to explore skills and 
employment as a way of improving their lives and they will be charged with 
maximising outcomes for Salford residents from the newly commissioned GMCA’s 
Specialist Employment Service and the newly commissioned Department for Work 
and Pension’s Supported Employment Service, by ensuring that both services are 
fully integrated into Salford’s public and third sector service offer and operate in a 
joined up and coordinated manner.
.

3.4.2 Princes Park Garden Centre
The garden centre is a day opportunity with the ability to train people in 
horticulture and other relevant skills, with the aim of moving people on to voluntary 
or paid work. Spaces are limited and the garden centre is a small community 
organisation.

4. Conclusion

4.1 There are low numbers of people with mental health or learning disabilities in 
employment, his is a nationally recognised issue.

4.2 Current local performance shows that targets in both mental health and learning 
disability are not being met, although this is taken at the mid year point.

4.3 A number of approaches are being taken to improve the support available to 
people with secondary care mental health needs and Learning Disabilities into 
employment.

4.4 These include: GM supported employment service, local support services, and 
the revision of mental health employment support to align with the Living Well 
model.

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Draft Submission V2 7th October 2019 P a g e  | 1

Employer Evidence Template
You may use this template to record your evidence, further actions or comments for consideration as you go through your self-
assessment. This will also help you if you want to become a Disability Confident Leader and have your self-assessment validated.
This is for your records and you do not need to send it to us. 

Employers name Salford City Council

Disability Confident Reference number (DSC000…) DCS002210

Date 1st October 2019
Completed by and contact details Dionne Duffill, Policy & Partnerships Team, 0161 607 8637

Justine Cuddy, Human Resources Team, 0161 607 8636
Emma Nolan, Skills & Work Team, 0161 793 3086

Theme 1 – Getting the right people for your business
The employer must have agreed to all of the following actions.

Criteria
As a Disability Confident employer, 
our business is:

Evidence Comments or further action 
required 

1. Actively looking to attract and 
recruit disabled people. 

Salford City Council Equal Opportunities policy 
https://yourzone.salford.gov.uk/media/2095/salford-
city-council-equal-opportunities-policy-2016.pdf 
outlines our commitment to developing a workforce 
that represents the communities we serve, and 
ensures that we retain and develop workers from 
across all sections of society. 
The Salford Futures programme is delivered in-
house by Salford City Council Skills and Work 

Joint Disability Confident event in 
the planning stage to be hosted 
jointly with Salford City Council 
Skills and Work team, DWP and 
the Salford Work and Health 
provider.

P
age 29

https://yourzone.salford.gov.uk/media/2095/salford-city-council-equal-opportunities-policy-2016.pdf
https://yourzone.salford.gov.uk/media/2095/salford-city-council-equal-opportunities-policy-2016.pdf


Draft Submission V2 7th October 2019 P a g e  | 2

Team. Salford Futures provides support to 
unemployed and those Salford residents who have 
or face significant disadvantage, through the 
provision of work experience and traineeship 
placements. This is provided through pre-
employment training and support, which includes 
supporting residents who have a long term health 
condition or a disability. 
https://www.salford.gov.uk/jobs-skills-and-
work/salford-futures/ 

Salford City Council support and have been 
delivering Supported Internships. These are 
structured study programs specifically designed for 
young people aged 16-24 with Education, Health 
and Care plans (or statements of SEN). 
https://www.salford.gov.uk/jobs-skills-and-
work/salford-supported-internship/ 

Salford City Council’s commissioned recruitment 
service SEARCH provides additional support in 
order to connect local people and businesses to 
opportunities in Salford. Since 2012, the service 
has supported a significant number of residents 
into employment, who have or experienced a long 
term health condition and or a disability with 
employers who are based in Salford. Working with 
employers to change who and how they recruit.

https://www.salford.gov.uk/jobs-skills-and-

To review the existing SCC and 
JC+ collaborative Creating 
Opportunities Job and Skills 
events, which are held at Salford 
Civic Centre in order to look at 
the feasibility to support a 
dedicated local disability and 
wider health event, alongside the 
development of targeted 
recruitment campaigns. 

Ensure SCC’s commitment to 
employing and retaining disabled 
people is reflected in all job 
adverts, include the DC logo on 
greater.jobs

P
age 30

https://www.salford.gov.uk/jobs-skills-and-work/salford-futures/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/jobs-skills-and-work/salford-futures/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/jobs-skills-and-work/salford-supported-internship/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/jobs-skills-and-work/salford-supported-internship/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/jobs-skills-and-work/help-finding-work-and-training/job-help-for-residents-and-businesses/


Draft Submission V2 7th October 2019 P a g e  | 3

work/help-finding-work-and-training/job-help-for-
residents-and-businesses/

Through the delivery of the joint Salford City 
Council and DWP joint Creating Opportunities 
Events (co-ordinated and managed through the 
Skills and Work team) and are held at Salford Civic 
Centre, all employers and providers, have been 
encouraged to support the disability confident 
agenda, in regards to who and how they recruit 
and have been able to access support and advise 
on being an inclusive and diverse employer. 
https://www.salford.gov.uk/jobs-skills-and-
work/help-finding-work-and-training/jobs-careers-
and-skills-event/ 

Salford City Council Skills and Work team now 
have approval for the creation of a Skills and Work 
Commissioning Officer post (from November 2019) 
for an initial 2 year period. This post will sit within 
the Skills and Work Team and will be jointly funded 
by Children and Adult services.

The main focus of the post will be an Employment 
and Skills advocate for adults and young people 
with Learning Disabilities and other significant 
disabilities in Salford.

It’s aim is to: 

 Increase the number of Salford residents 
with LD and other Significant disabilities into 

In the process of recruitment and 
appointment to the post. 

P
age 31

https://www.salford.gov.uk/jobs-skills-and-work/help-finding-work-and-training/job-help-for-residents-and-businesses/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/jobs-skills-and-work/help-finding-work-and-training/job-help-for-residents-and-businesses/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/jobs-skills-and-work/help-finding-work-and-training/jobs-careers-and-skills-event/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/jobs-skills-and-work/help-finding-work-and-training/jobs-careers-and-skills-event/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/jobs-skills-and-work/help-finding-work-and-training/jobs-careers-and-skills-event/


Draft Submission V2 7th October 2019 P a g e  | 4

paid work 

 Increase the number Skills and Employment 
opportunities for priority residents

 Encourage adults and young people to 
explore skills and employment as a way of 
improving their lives

 To integrate and coordinate the Skills and 
Employment support offer in Salford to 
improve outcomes for residents and their 
families

 To evaluate the impact and benefits to 
Salford of the skills and employment support 
delivered.

2. Providing a fully inclusive and 
accessible recruitment process. 

Salford City Council’s specific guidance on 
reasonable adjustments includes information for 
managers that detail what is expected of them in 
the recruitment process including putting in place 
process for working out reasonable adjustments in 
the event of a disabled person applying for, being 
interviewed or appointed to a vacancy. 

Early Opportunities Matching service for Salford 
City Council vacancies provides a route way for 
those residents with additional barriers which 
include disabilities that have participated in a range 
of services and pre-employment programmes. 
https://yourzone.salford.gov.uk/people-

Providing recruiting managers 
with more guidance about 
meeting the expectations of the 
organisation to support disabled 
people in the recruitment 
process. 

P
age 32

https://yourzone.salford.gov.uk/people-zone/manager-zone/recruitment-and-career-development/redeployment-and-early-opportunity-jobs-matching/


Draft Submission V2 7th October 2019 P a g e  | 5

zone/manager-zone/recruitment-and-career-
development/redeployment-and-early-opportunity-
jobs-matching/

3. Offering an interview to disabled 
people who meet the minimum 
criteria for the job. 

We promote on SCC website that we guarantee to 
interview people if they meet the minimum criteria 
for jobs. Application information is also available in 
different formats where required, such as Braille 
and large print. There is also assistance in place 
for employees who become disabled whilst working 
for the council. We participate in regular monitoring 
of recruitment statistics to ensure that procedures 
are operating effectively and that any patterns or 
trends are identified and resolved.

https://www.salford.gov.uk/equalopps 

Refresh of guidance for recruiting 
managers to promote this 
information

4. Being flexible when assessing 
people so disabled job applicants 
have the best opportunity to 
demonstrate that they can do the 
job. 

We offer a fair, efficient approach to recruitment to 
ensure that everyone has the opportunity to 
demonstrate their skills and adjustments are made 
when requested

https://www.salford.gov.uk/equalopps 

Refresh guidance for recruiting 
managers

5. Proactively offering and making 
reasonable adjustments as 
required.

All candidates for interview are advised to let the 
recruiting manager/s know if they need reasonable 
adjustments. 

Reasonable adjustments guidance outlines 
manager’s responsibilities to make reasonable 
adjustments when requested as far as possible 
and not to wait for an employee to be off sick or 

Refresh guidance for recruiting 
managers

P
age 33

https://yourzone.salford.gov.uk/people-zone/manager-zone/recruitment-and-career-development/redeployment-and-early-opportunity-jobs-matching/
https://yourzone.salford.gov.uk/people-zone/manager-zone/recruitment-and-career-development/redeployment-and-early-opportunity-jobs-matching/
https://yourzone.salford.gov.uk/people-zone/manager-zone/recruitment-and-career-development/redeployment-and-early-opportunity-jobs-matching/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/equalopps
https://www.salford.gov.uk/equalopps


Draft Submission V2 7th October 2019 P a g e  | 6

recommendations from occupational health before 
doing so or discussing it with the employee.

6. Encouraging our suppliers and 
partner firms to be Disability 
Confident.

The refreshed Salford City Mayor’s Charter for 
Employment Standards. This Charter was 
launched in November 2013 and aimed at 
benefiting the workforce and business of Salford. 

The Supporter application process now has 
Disability Confident information and accreditation 
embedded in as a commitment as part of the Equal 
and Inclusive pledge. Salford City Council Skills 
and Work team are working collaboratively in 
partnership with Salford DWP to maximise sign ups 
and commitments to the Disability Confident and 
SEE Potential campaigns. 
https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/city-
mayor/city-mayors-employment-charter/    

The Employers who are involved with the 
Apprenticeship levy, have been offered, Disability 
Confident Training https://www.salford.gov.uk/jobs-
skills-and-work/apprenticeship-support/salford-
skills-for-business-apprenticeship-fund/ 

Equalities team working with the Procurement 
Team on adding equality standards to the 
procurement process. 

Further and continued 
development of this work

7. Ensuring employees have Current e-learning available. Disability equality is Refresh of guidance and 

P
age 34

https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/city-mayor/city-mayors-employment-charter/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/city-mayor/city-mayors-employment-charter/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/jobs-skills-and-work/apprenticeship-support/salford-skills-for-business-apprenticeship-fund/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/jobs-skills-and-work/apprenticeship-support/salford-skills-for-business-apprenticeship-fund/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/jobs-skills-and-work/apprenticeship-support/salford-skills-for-business-apprenticeship-fund/


Draft Submission V2 7th October 2019 P a g e  | 7

sufficient disability equality 
awareness training.

covered in Management Essentials training 
courses and forms a large part of the Managers 
responsibilities for Absence Management training.

HR and Service Managers have been offered 
Disability Confident Training, which has been 
delivered by the Cities Supported Internship 
provider Pure Innovations.

awareness raising of disability 
equality training

P
age 35



Draft Submission V2 7th October 2019 P a g e  | 8

Theme 1 – Getting the right people for your business

You must agree to at least one of the following activities.

Activity Evidence (only for the activities you 
have agreed to in your self-
assessment)

Comments or further action required

1. Providing work experience. Provided and delivered through a 
number of City Council in-house and 
collaborative funded programmes which 
includes; Salford Futures, Traineeships, 
Supported Internships and individual 
work experience requests (which are 
managed outside of the above 
mentioned programme delivery 
timescales).

2. Providing work trials. Supported Internships and through work 
experience as progression routes into 
paid employment within Salford City 
Council.

3. Providing paid employment (permanent 
or fixed term). 

Salford Futures and Supported 
Internships beneficiaries can progress 
via the Salford City Council early 
matching route way into employment. 
https://yourzone.salford.gov.uk/people-
zone/manager-zone/recruitment-and-

P
age 36

https://yourzone.salford.gov.uk/people-zone/manager-zone/recruitment-and-career-development/redeployment-and-early-opportunity-jobs-matching/
https://yourzone.salford.gov.uk/people-zone/manager-zone/recruitment-and-career-development/redeployment-and-early-opportunity-jobs-matching/


Draft Submission V2 7th October 2019 P a g e  | 9

Theme 1 – Getting the right people for your business

You must agree to at least one of the following activities.

Activity Evidence (only for the activities you 
have agreed to in your self-
assessment)

Comments or further action required

career-development/redeployment-and-
early-opportunity-jobs-matching/ 

4. Providing apprenticeships. Salford Futures and Supported 
Internships beneficiaries have 
progressed via the Salford City Council 
early matching route way into 
Apprenticeship employment. 
https://www.salford.gov.uk/jobs-skills-
and-work/apprenticeship-support/ 

5. Providing a traineeship. Delivered through Salford Futures and 
Cities provider network.

6. Providing paid internships or support 
internships (or both). 

Delivery and support provided as part of 
the Supported Internships network.

7. Advertising vacancies and other 
opportunities through organisations and 
media aimed particularly at disabled 
people. 

SCC advertise on the greater.jobs 
platform which is a collaboration 
between all 10 Greater Manchester 
authorities. The GM HR EDI Group 
developing targeted offer for disabled 
people

This can be considered where no 
cost in conjunction with other  
media aimed at protected groups 
e.g. Proud employers

P
age 37

https://yourzone.salford.gov.uk/people-zone/manager-zone/recruitment-and-career-development/redeployment-and-early-opportunity-jobs-matching/
https://yourzone.salford.gov.uk/people-zone/manager-zone/recruitment-and-career-development/redeployment-and-early-opportunity-jobs-matching/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/jobs-skills-and-work/apprenticeship-support/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/jobs-skills-and-work/apprenticeship-support/


Draft Submission V2 7th October 2019 P a g e  | 10

Theme 1 – Getting the right people for your business

You must agree to at least one of the following activities.

Activity Evidence (only for the activities you 
have agreed to in your self-
assessment)

Comments or further action required

8. Engaging with Jobcentre Plus, Work and 
Health programme providers and local 
disabled people’s user led organisations 
(DPULOs) to access support when 
required. 

The Skills and Work team, successfully 
work in collaboration with the local 
Salford Jobcentre Plus infrastructure 
and have a robust relationship with the 
DWP Salford Partnership Manager, JC+ 
employer engagement team and DC 
staff. This includes monthly KIT 
meetings, joint work plans, and working 
on joint employment events 
https://www.salford.gov.uk/jobs-skills-
and-work/help-finding-work-and-
training/jobs-careers-and-skills-event/    
and recruitment campaigns.

DWP are a member of the Skills and 
Work board which oversees and co-
ordinates The Salford Employment and 
Skills Strategy and NEET reduction 
strategy for the City. 
https://www.partnersinsalford.org/media
/1232/employment_skills_strategy_2017
-20.pdf  

Engagement from the Resourcing 
Team with local disabled people’s 
user led groups

P
age 38

https://www.salford.gov.uk/jobs-skills-and-work/help-finding-work-and-training/jobs-careers-and-skills-event/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/jobs-skills-and-work/help-finding-work-and-training/jobs-careers-and-skills-event/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/jobs-skills-and-work/help-finding-work-and-training/jobs-careers-and-skills-event/
https://www.partnersinsalford.org/media/1232/employment_skills_strategy_2017-20.pdf
https://www.partnersinsalford.org/media/1232/employment_skills_strategy_2017-20.pdf
https://www.partnersinsalford.org/media/1232/employment_skills_strategy_2017-20.pdf


Draft Submission V2 7th October 2019 P a g e  | 11

Theme 1 – Getting the right people for your business

You must agree to at least one of the following activities.

Activity Evidence (only for the activities you 
have agreed to in your self-
assessment)

Comments or further action required

The Skills and Work team provide, a 
dedicated Commissioning Manager that 
works directly on supporting the 
integration and delivery for the GM 
Work and Health programme with the 
Salford provider, which is the Growth 
Company. This support is resourced In 
kind by Salford City Council, Skills and 
Work team.

9. Providing an environment that is 
inclusive and accessible for staff, clients 
and customer. 

Inclusive Leadership training (and 
links to GM Building Leadership for 
Inclusion pilot work)

Building and Inclusive Organisation 
– framework linked to above

10. Offering other innovative and effective 
approaches to encourage disabled 
people to apply for opportunities and 
supporting them when they do. 

P
age 39



Draft Submission V2 7th October 2019 P a g e  | 12

Theme 2 – Keeping and developing your people

The employer must have agreed to all of the following actions.

Criteria

As a Disability Confident employer, my 
business is:

Evidence Comments or further action required 

1. Promoting a culture of being Disability 
Confident. 

Developing a survey also linked to Health 
and Wellbeing to be consulted on with 
Equal in Salford staff group and Business 
Disability Forum for employees who have 
disclosed they have a disability to assess:

 Do they have more than 1 disability

 Do they have reasonable adjustments 
for 1 disability or others for other 
disabilities  

 Do the reasonable adjustments in place 
meet their needs

 Do they feel their managers have the 
skills to effectively discuss their disability 
and reasonable adjustments (if not 
specify)

 Have all adjustments been implemented

 Have they had their reasonable 

Joint action plans for Health and 
Wellbeing and Inclusion to support 
disabled employees 

Further comms and awareness raising 
from this for employees and managers

Refresh Reasonable adjustment guide 
and include lived experiences of staff

Linking to Building an Inclusive 
Organisation work and regular comms 
highlighting employees experiences and 
where to go for support/information

P
age 40



Draft Submission V2 7th October 2019 P a g e  | 13

adjustments reviewed 

 How long did it take for the reasonable 
adjustments to be put in place

Have they been offered disability leave

2. Supporting employees to manage their 
disabilities or health conditions. 

Salford Wellbeing offer for all employees, 
reasonable adjustments guidance, manager 
training, HR & OD support, Equality & Policy 
Team support, Trade Union support

Actions as above

3. Ensuring there are no barriers to the 
development and progression of disabled 
staff. 

Communicated organisational expectation 
of all managers that disability will be taken 
account of and reasonable adjustments 
made in the application of all people 
management policies, procedures and 
practices

Actions as above and in recruitment 
guidance

4. Ensuring managers are aware of how 
they can support staff who are sick or 
absent from work. 

Covered in Management Essentials training 
(mandatory)

Manager’s responsibilities for absence 
management and employee support training

Mental Health First Aid training for 
managers

Engagement with managers on proposed 
improvements to Absence Management 
policy

Above outputs to be considered in 
training delivery and learning and 
development opportunities

5. Valuing and listening to feedback from Consultation with Equal in Salford Roll-out of Health and Wellbeing surveys 

P
age 41



Draft Submission V2 7th October 2019 P a g e  | 14

disabled staff. Employee engagement (pulse) surveys 
being piloted in Service Reform including 
H&WB

Health and Wellbeing surveys being piloted 
in Service Reform

Salford 100 

Engagement with trade unions

in Place and People directorates

Outputs to be developed into action 
plans and workforce development plans

Consideration of employee feedback 
mechanism (linked to HR & OD chatbot 
for easy links to advice and information) 
and development of employee offer

6. Reviewing this Disability Confident 
employer self-assessment regularly. 

Committed to do this annually as part of 
actions developed from the Workforce 
Equality Survey outputs

P
age 42



$vuvmib5n.docx P a g e  | 15

Theme 2 – Keeping and developing your people. 

The employer must have agreed to take at least one of the following activities.

Activity Evidence (only for the activities you 
have agreed to in your self-
assessment)

Comments 

1. Providing mentoring, coaching, buddying and 
or other support networks for staff. 

Health and Wellbeing Ambassadors 
pilot

Equal in Salford staff group

Service Reform directorate are piloting a 
Health and Wellbeing Ambassadors 
programme, and have assessed and 
recruited 8 people from the workforce to 
be trained to actively promote health and 
wellbeing and signpost employees to 
relevant support whilst encouraging 
colleagues to access relevant health and 
wellbeing opportunities.  

2. Including disability awareness equality 
training in our induction process. 

Included in the mandatory Equalities 
training as part of induction

More awareness raising of supporting 
disabled employees in general, making 
closer links and promotion between 
Disability and Diversity and Inclusion and 
expanding the offer for both

3. Providing mentoring, coaching, buddying and 
or other support networks for staff. 

4. Guiding staff to information and advice on Mental Wellbeing support: 

P
age 43



$vuvmib5n.docx P a g e  | 16

mental health conditions. https://yourzone.salford.gov.uk/people-
zone/salford-wellbeing/mental-
wellbeing/ 

Mental health first response referral

Occupational health counselling

Counselling and psychotherapy centre 
at Salford University

Stress pack

Mental Health First Aid for managers 
training

Suicide awareness training

Promotion of Mental Health Week and 
Time to Change

5. Providing occupational health services if 
required. 

Occupational Health referrals are part 
of Salford Wellbeing offer for all 
employees as are counselling, 
workplace assessments, physio and 
Access to Work support is promoted

6. Identifying and sharing good practice. Good practice is shared across all 
local partner organisations and other 
local authorities. Where possible offers 
are shared for staff. Collaboration 

P
age 44

https://yourzone.salford.gov.uk/people-zone/salford-wellbeing/mental-wellbeing/
https://yourzone.salford.gov.uk/people-zone/salford-wellbeing/mental-wellbeing/
https://yourzone.salford.gov.uk/people-zone/salford-wellbeing/mental-wellbeing/


$vuvmib5n.docx P a g e  | 17

between organisations at H&WB 
Steering Group and H&WB Board

7.Providing human resource managers with 
specific Disability Confident training 

HR & OD Team have all completed 
equality training e-learning module and 
attending Managers Responsibilities 
for Absence Management including 
disability awareness

HR & OD team to attend Disability 
Confident training and explore if this can 
be offered to managers

Explore Disability Confident e-learning

P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 | P a g e

Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel
Work Programme and Recommendation Tracker

2019 / 2020
Updated December 2019

Meeting date Item for consideration Lead Officer to 
present papers

Type of scrutiny 

7 August 2019  Primary Care Access – 
standards and equality

Karen Proctor, CCG 
Director of 
Commissioning

Overview report on the Salford Standard and local 
variance.

4 September 2019  Salford Locality Plan 
refresh

 Dentistry provision

 All Age Carers Strategy

Peter Brambleby
Interim Director of 
Public Health

Peter Brambleby, 
Interim Director of 
Public Health

Paul Walsh / Ann 
Brooking

Shaping the policy development and pre-decision 
review of emerging refresh.

Existing requested agenda item.

Scrutiny of Strategy prior to formal approval.

2 October 2019  Public engagement and 
consultation

Claire Connor, CCG Retrospective scrutiny of annual reports of public 
engagement by Salford CCG and Salford Healthwatch.

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 8



2 | P a g e

Meeting date Item for consideration Lead Officer to 
present papers

Type of scrutiny 

6 November 2019  Salford Locality Plan 
refresh

 GM Improving 
Specialised Care 
Programme

 SRFT Elective 
Orthopaedic Briefing

Peter Brambleby
Interim Director of 
Public Health

Karen Proctor, CCG 
Director of 
Commissioning

Harry Golby, CCG

Review of progress of refresh.

Update on current proposals and scrutiny of likely 
impact on SRFT services to local people.

4 December 2019  Salford Domiciliary care 
– standards and quality

 Adult social care 
performance framework

Mark Albiston SRFT / 
Paul Walsh SCC

Mark Albiston SRFT/ 
Judd Skelton / Paul 
Walsh SCC / CCG

Overview of care home standards.

Scrutiny of the improvement agenda.

8 January 2020  Supported Employment 
for vulnerable adults

 Mental Health All Age 
Commissioning Strategy

Alison Burnett, Skills 
and Work SCC / Clare 
Mayo and Kerry 
Thornley CCG / SCC

Judd Skelton
AD Integrated  
Commissioning Adults

Update on progress against action plan.

Scrutiny of first year of operation.

5 February 2020
 Primary Care Access – 

standards and equality
Karen Proctor, CCG 
Director of 
Commissioning

6 month Update (from August 2019)

P
age 48



3 | P a g e

Meeting date Item for consideration Lead Officer to 
present papers

Type of scrutiny 

4 March 2020  Scrutiny Panel to identify emerging issues in Forward 
Look.

1 April 2020  Adult social care 
performance framework

Mark Albiston SRFT / 
Judd Skelton, Paul 
Walsh SCC, CCG

Scrutiny of the improvement agenda. 

May 2020 NO MEETING
3 June 2020  Salford Locality Plan DPH Mid-year review of progress against the plan.

1 July 2020  Scrutiny Panel to identify emerging issues in Forward 
Look.

August 2020 NO MEETING
2 September 2020 
7 October 2020 
4 November 2020 
2 December 2020 

Abeyance List
The following issues have yet to be prioritised and TOR determined.

Poverty and its impact on health 

Policy development task and finish scrutiny with potential to influence refresh of Salford 
Anti-Poverty Strategy and Locality Plan. 

Peter Brambleby
Interim Director of Public Health

Out of area placements for younger adults  

Overview on commissioning arrangements and issues

Judd Skelton, Clare Mayo, Kerry 
Thornley, Integrated Commissioning 
SCC / CCG

P
age 49



4 | P a g e

Portfolio of the Panel: Membership – 12 Members:

1. Health, Public Health and Social Care Integration and 
performance thereafter
2.  Commissioning Hub
3.  Major Health reconfiguration
4. Overview of Health and Wellbeing Board in promoting 
integration
5.  Supporting People
6. Services for independent living – care on call, sheltered 
housing, supported tenancies
7. Adult Safeguarding
8. Integrated Teams
9. Provider Services
10. Personalisation and care management
11. Asylum Seekers and Refugees
12. Welfare rights and debt advice
13. To review and scrutinise any matter relating to the planning 
provision and operation of the health service in the Salford area.
14. To scrutinise the council’s business plan and budget in this 
functional area

Councillors

 Saunders
 1 Conservative Vacancy
 1 Labour Vacancy
 Bellamy (VC)
 Bentham 
 Brooks
 Dawson
 Hesling
 King
 Linden
 Morris (C)
 Warmisham

J Ahmed - Co-opted Member (Healthwatch Salford)
David Backhouse - Co-opted Member (Healthwatch Salford)
Bruce Poole - Co-opted Member (Salford CVS)

P
age 50


	Agenda
	4 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 6 November 2019.
	6 Mental Health All Age Commissioning Strategy.
	7 Supported Employment for vulnerable adults
	Scrutiny Report Supp Emp MH LD Jan2020 Final_appendix

	8 Work Programme.

